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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 17, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide Permanent
Housing programs and Supportive Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program in an amount not to exceed $281,462, effective per the dates indicated in
the table below, upon Governor and Executive Council approval, through the completion dates indicated
below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor

Name

Project
Name

Vendor

#
Location

Effective

Date

Completion
Date

SFY

2020

SFY

2021

Total

Amount

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.

Permanent

Housing VI
157730-

B001 Manchester 9/1/19 8/31/20 $59,478 $11,896 $71,374

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.

Concord

Community
Permanent

Housing

157730-

B001

Merrimack

County 10/01/19 9/30/20 $78,995 $26,332 $105,327

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.

Dover

Permanent

Housing

157730-

B001
Stratford

County
11/1/19 10/31/20 $69,841 $34,920 $104,761

1

Total $208,314 $73,148 $281,462

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State
Fiscal Years (SFY) 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $208,314

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $73,148

Total $281,462
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EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date of a grant is based
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services.

Collectively, these vendors have a target to provide permanent housing and supportive services,
to a minimum of thirty-eight (38) participants from September 1, 2019 through October 31, 2020.

The attached agreements represent three (3) of thirty (30) total annual agreements, many of
which have renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located
throughout the state, to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's
Continuum of Care Program.

Using the "Housing First" model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services to maximize the participant's ability to
live more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing instability and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and
strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main, purposes:

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis. ^

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
and/or outreach/supportive services will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry
in the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required
by law to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management
Information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs funded through these contracts.
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As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of these agreements, the parties have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests. Permanent Housing
and Supportive Services for individuals and families, who are experiencing housing instability and/or
homelessness, may not be available in their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for
services placed upon the communities' local welfare authorities and other human-services providers. It
may also cause individuals and/or families to not have access to housing, and therefore, experience
homelessness.

/

Area served: City of Manchester and Merrimackand Stafford Counties; a minimum of thirty-eight
(38) individuals will be served collectively.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted,

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Dejxirtmenl of IleaUh and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing op/x>rtunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Continuum of Care. Permanent Housing VI Program. SS-2020-BHS-()4-PERMA-17

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641-9441

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

August 31, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$71,374

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: State ofNew Hampshire, County of Hillsborough

On 2019 ^ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
RUTH A. SYRB^ Notary Public

My Coimnission Expires Septsrnbo'6,2023

1.1-3.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin. Asst., Notary Public

1.14' Aate Agency Signatdre

Date

1.16 Approval by theNil^. V^partment of Administration,

By:

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

0irfeA)f. Pf
sidn of Personnel (ifapplicable)

Director, On:

57

1.17 Approval by ̂ Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By: . /V XJ' ^ On: "7/2-/
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTORySERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days af^er giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with Kinds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $l,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificale(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

IS. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify sen/ice priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
speciftc information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency. Permanent Housing, PH VI, FIT, due 9/1/19

FIT/NHNH, Inc. PH VI Exhibil A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing Program consisting of thirteen (13) permanent
housing units serving twenty (20) homeless individuals with mental illness and/or substance abuse
disorders, and which includes, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as Identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written obsen/ation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

FIT/NHNH, Inc. PH VI Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by

the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge Is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual Income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents {e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation. '

2.3.1.5. Procram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1){ii)(F);and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.
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2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with;

2.4.1. The Qroanizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, Implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmativelv Furthering Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Reouirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:
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3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR1: Within thirty (30) days afterthe Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing In particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project In the manner
proposed In the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NORA). The APR shall be In the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State In compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. Including training In data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth In the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed In all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550; and

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed In the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or deslgnee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed In Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined In Section 2.2. Exhibit A
and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall Include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Program participants offered the option of voluntary participation In vendor-provided mental
health and/or substance abuse treatment; and

6.2.1.2. Program participants provided with individualized voluntary treatment and care plan which
Includes targeted case management needs assessment identifying goals the Individual has
chosen to pursue.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed In Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0023L1T0011811

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. September 1, 2019-August 31, 2020, not to exceed $71,374

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $69,134

1.2.8.2. Administrative Expenses: $2.240

1.2.8.3. Total program amount: $71,374

1.2.8.4. Vendor Match (25%): $17,844

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grantfundsare tobe used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.
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2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirementsof 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Prelect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records Include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records Include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are

supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Pavment of Proiect Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures Incurred In the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified In this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs. Including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed In Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B..
all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

houslnqsuDDortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information If requested byithe State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs Incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made. It shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed In Exhibits A and B, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense Ellalbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Ooeratina Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing:

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment. i

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included In the lease.

5.3. Supportive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations In 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
partlclpant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer Instruction. on-the-Job instruction, services

that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described In 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies:

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered In accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasino funds
only; Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live In a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and In a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-HousIng program component must be

tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter Into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs Include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not Include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may Include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job Includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements:

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and otherdocumentsdirectly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.6. above, Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor Is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organization(s), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.
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5.6.1. Requirements:

5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing Individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HDD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities, if electricity, gas, and water are Included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7; Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HDD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly: funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged In full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management System

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that at! funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for sen/ices or (except as other\vise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;
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09/13/18 Page 1 Of5 Date 2019



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department \Arithin 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to lavArs which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
proHt organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, natlonaloiigln
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause. Including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials

09/13/16 Page 4 of 5 Date 16| 2019



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

July 16. 2019
Date Nam^: Maureen Be'auregard

President

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name: Manrppn RppiirpnarH ^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
^Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2019
Date Name: Maureen Beauregard O a

President

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor initialMl
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters . , on-iQ

cu/DHHS/110713 Page! of2 Date JUly lb, ̂ Ulg



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2019
Date Nanie^Maureen Beauregard ^

President

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH. Inc.

July 16. 2Q19
Date Nam4 Maureen Beauregard ^

Title: President

Extiibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part 0, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

^3^® Narrtenyaureen Beauregard
Title. President

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Vendor Initials ]
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

<1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entltv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaoreoatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TItleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. .

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Vendor lnitial4N7x
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 ExhibIM Vendor Initial
Health Insurance Portability Act
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
1  I

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivlM PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor InitialqM^
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Businej

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershlo. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.,

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall sun/ive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name of the Vend

Al
Signature ot Autnorieed Kepresentative Signature of Authorized Repres

wk \ \ Si Ck n I 1 ; Maureen Beauregard
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

I

Name of Authorized Representa

J

Date

tive

President
Title of Authorized Representative

uly 16, 2019
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabillty and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2019—
Date Name? Maureen Beauregard ^

Title: President

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 825360399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be

transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, othenvise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewali protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) vyith the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this infomnation at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTinCATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FIT/NHNH, INC is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994.1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 207982

Certificate Number 000408881S

s

%
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of April A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, David Cassidv do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of FIT/NHNH. Inc
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on July 16. 2016 :
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

fhe 16 day of Julv ■ 2019

4.

(Date Contract Signed)

Maureen Beaureoard
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborouoh

is the duly elected President

(Title of Contract Signatory)

'Prr,Y
SIgnat of the Elected Officer)

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 16 day of Julv ■ 2019

By David Cassidv

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

(Notary Public/Jastice of the Peace)

RUTH A. SYHEK, Notary Public
My Oonwitaton Bqirm OapHiiibtf 5,2023

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1,2005
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FAMIINT-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DBEAUDOIN

DATE (MM/OCyyVYY)

2/7/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ,

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate hoider in iieu of such endorsement{s).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Moniii & Everett Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

E.«: (603) 225-S611 | wS.npl(603) 225-7935

INSURERfSI AFFORDINO COVPRAGP NAICd

INSURER A :PhitadelDhla Insurance Comnanv 23850

INSURED

FiT/NHNH, Inc.
122 Market St

Manchester, NH 03101

IN^URFR R - Hdalth Car* a Human 8*rvie*a S*lf InaurM Group ,

INSURER C:

INSURRR D ;

INSURER E :

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WSR
UB. TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL
jtiaa

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITV

OCCURCLAIMSJMDE

GEW. AGGREGATE UMIT APPUES PER:

POUCY LOG

OTHER:

SU8R
WVD POLICY NUMBER

PHPK1923495 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED

MEO EXP (Any on» p«r«Ofil

PERSONAL a ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000

1,000,000

20,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
tE> •cdawitl

1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK1923501 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 BODILY INJURY (Pf Odnenl

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

NONOWNEp
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Pf ■ccKterrtl
PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPf «ccid«niy

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS4AA0E PHUB659752 1/1/2019 1/1/2020
EACH OCCURRENCE

5,000,000

RETENTIONS 5,000,000

WmKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(M>ndal»ry in NH)
If y«t, discrtb* ufKltr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bMow

f f w HCHS20190000102 2/1/2019 2/1/2020

PER
STATUTE

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
1.000,000

E.L DtSEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1,000,000

B.L DtSEASE ■ POUCY LIMIT 1,000,000
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PHPK1923495

HCHS20190000102
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Excess 1,000,000
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Professional Liability Limits
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Workers Compensation information
3A State: NH

CANCELLATtON

State of NH, OHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROSnSIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESEPTTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) €> 1988*2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Families in Transition

122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101

TeL 603-641-9441

Fax. 603-641-1244

Families
In Transition

Mission

To provide safe and affordable housing and

comprehensive social services to individuals

and families who aa"e homeless or who are at risk of

becoming homeless, enabling them to gain

self-sufficiency and respect.
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BerryDunri

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Oirectora
FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries. \

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FIT/NHNH, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2018 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the,preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting prindptes; this includes the design.
Implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated'finandal statements that are free from material, misstalement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated finandal slatentents based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatemenL

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain'audit evidence about the amounts and .disclosures in
the consolidated finandal statements. .The procedures seized depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of- the consolidated finandal
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk'assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant .to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated finandal
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumslances. but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. Ar) audit also indudes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates madet by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffident and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. • '

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present falrty, in all material
respects, the consolidated finandal position of the Organization as of December 31, 2018, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended In
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting prindples.

Bangof, ME • Portland. ME • Manchester. NH • Glastonbury. CT • Charleston. VW • Phoenix, AZ
t^errydunn.com



Board of Directors
FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2017 consolidated financial statements and, in our
report dated March 30, 2018. expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31. 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Ofher Matter

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the related consolidatir)g
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
Individual entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accountirtg and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements artd certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated .financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordar>ce with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discus^ in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2018 the Organization adopted
Rnancial Accounting StaruJards Board Accounting Startdards Update No. 2016-14. Presentatigri of

.Financial Statements for Not-for-Proftt Entities (Topic 958). Our opinion is not modified with resp'ed^ff"
this matter.

Manchester. New Hampshire
March 18. 2019



FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31» 2018

(With Comparative Totals for Decemt>er 31, 2017)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Funds held as fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

investment In related entity
Asset held for sale

Property and equipment, net
Devebpmenl in process
Other assets, net

Total assets

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Gabiiities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accaied expenses
Funds held as fiscal agent
Due to related entity
Line of credit
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities *

Long-term debt, less current portion, net of ur^amortized deferred costs

TotalUabtlilles

Net assets

Wdhout dor>or restrictions • conirolling interest
Without dor)Of restrictions - noncontrolling interest

Total without donor restrictions

WKh donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabfllties and net assets

2018 2017

1.698,033 S 1,062,497
. 96,383

82.211 38,380
786.343 451,664

80,007 33,229
35.613 -

48.110 43.097

2,600.317 1,725,250

336,678 292,264
718,154 722,130

1,336,684 -

1,000 1,000
429,779 .

28,530,819 26,210,337
3,606,450 • 2,090,031
198.473 50.000

37.757.154 $ 31.091.012

1,116,180 S 216.147
249,907 220,828

348,095 217,676
• 98,383

36,613 -

145,000 -

82.475 49.504

1,977,270 800,538

13.604.017 11.264.521

■ 15.581.287 12 065.059

17,744,537 14,563,053
3.243.694 3.565.476

20,988,231 18,128,531

1.187.636 897.422

22.175.867

i  37.767.154 s 31.091.012

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ConsoildstMl StAtament of ActivttiM

Yoar Endad Daeambar 31,2018

(With Comparatlva Totah for tha Yaar Endad Dacambar 31,2017)
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The edcompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidatad financial statements.
•
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FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31,2017)

Program Activities

Sotaries and benefits
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Total salaries and
benefits

Other expenses
/Advertising
Applieabon arid permit fees
Bad debts

Bank charges
Consultants

Depreciation
Events

General insurance
Grant expense
Interest expense
fylanagement fees
Meais and entertainment.
Membership dues
Merger expenses
Office suppSes
Participant expenses
Postage
Printing
Professtonal fees

Relaled entity expense
Rental subsidtes

Repairs and maintenance
Shelter expense
Staff development

Taxes •
Technology support
Telephone
Travel

UtiRties
VISTA program .

■ Workers'compensation

Total expenses

Management 2016 2017

Houslno Thrift Store FundraKtno and General Total Total

S 3.492.775 $  316.195 $  518.402 S ' 355,442 $ 4,662,814 $ 3,168,366

400.761 24.951 54,002 37,770 517,604 349.575

262810 24.440 39.746 28.593 353.689 234.204

4.156.366 365.586 612,150 419,805 5,553,907 3.752.145

15.016 25,068 18.948 59,032 36,238

1.620 . . 1,620 2,015

28.100 . . 28,100 26:124

573 8,847 11,445 20,855 17.875

19.504 2.847 4.647 2.483 29.451 76.136

933.676 11,093 115.347 51.612 1,111,930 '  1.003.294
3.550 2.814 160.685 . 157,049 61.181

124.791 3,523 14.318 13.248 155,860 153.904

59.149 . . . 59,149 -

228,999 714 . 229,713 188.473

6.622 . . . 6,522 6,487

4.740 179 656 547 6,122 5.181

10.790 . 1.741 3.456 15,959 10.022
. 137,747 137,747 1.000

282.398 6,460 43.158 38.139 370,155 134.490

116.915 45 379 379 117,715 99.219

7.324 9 4,274 1,758 13,356 7,804

16.755 2.745 19.129 2.088 40,717 24,577

53,906 3.500 112.417 159,523 162,974

(159.398) 159,396 - - -

332.270 . - 332,270 298.272

370,123 34,325 42.145 16,169 452.752 409,132

166,891 . - .155,891 -

31,568 98 4,008 3.340 39,0M 23,136

■ 313,813 Z307 . - 318,920 326,184

190,132 2,231 26,782 23,666 244,311 65.457

68,992 5,058 10.095- 8.778 .  112,921 90.917

40,914 3,645 5.191 4,222 54,172 44,466

512,260 31.481. • 52.007 17,767 513,495 444.062

320,859 . . . 320,859 359.804

111.684 14.223 13229 9.220 148.355 84.544

S 8.390.926 S  666.374 S 1 131.941 S11.108.475 S 7.939.133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. .
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FtT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31. 2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcSe change in r>el assets to net cash provided by

operatir>g activiUos
Depi^atior^ and amortization
Grants and contrRxitiona for capital projects
Effect of consolidation of affiliate, net of cash held by consoBdated BfTdiate

orS32S.5S>

Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized loss (igain) on investments
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Decrease (increase) In:

Accourtts receivable

(Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
'Other assets

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Due to retaled party
Other current DaMities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing actMUes
Repa^ner^ of advances to related parties
Nat (deposits b) withdrawals from reserve accounts
Proceeds from sale of investments
investment in development In process
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Acquisition of property and equipmanl

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants and conlributiorts for capital projects
Net borrovrings from llr>e of credit
Proceeds from long*term borrowings
Payments on long^erm debt ' ' *

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net ̂ loease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure
Acquisition of property and equipment through lor^erm borrowings from seller

Property and equipment transferred from devetopment in process

2018 2017

3.149.914 S 915,494

1,125,127 1.016,491

(560.790) (1.538,770)

(3,104;400)

(131,267) (131,267)
■ 158,648 (1.270)

10,115 (5,133)

42,130 (16.731)
(334,679) (128,248).
(39,301) 2,609

(119,810) (302)

(21.266) 51,641

84,606 9.744
'35,613

32.971 1398

338.019 175.B56'

(35.613) 8,208

(40,338) 57,346

275,024 4.264

(1,515,419) (1,931,040)
. 5,133

f2.4T6.1MI

860.790

145.000
3,507,201
f«3.0191

3.989.972

535A36

,1251421

13.792.4551 12018.7781

1,538,770

772,009
1203.1201

264.737

797.760

5  1.598.033 S 1.062.497

60.615

2.222.138 $,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Organization

Families in Transition. Inc. (FIT or the Organization) Is a New Hampshire nonprofit, incorporated on
May 13, 1994, to provide housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who
are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless In certain areas of southern New Harnpshlre, including
Manchester. Concord and Dover.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street.
Spruce Str^t, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street In Manchester. New Hampshire. Additional housing
facilities are owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization Is the sole
general partner. These limited partnerships include Bicentennial Families Concord Limited Partnership
(Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord. New Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester. New Hampshire; and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street In Manchester, New
Hampshire (collectively referr^ to as the Limited Partnerships).

In 2008. the Organization created a Community Development Housing Organization. Housing Benefits,
Inc. (Housing Benefits). Housirig Benefits identifies and develops new housing units and refurbishes
existing units to rheet the persistent need of combating homeiessness. Completed housing units are
located on School & Third Street. Lowell Street, Belmont Street, Market Street (Millyard I and Mlilyard
II). Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New Hampshire as well as an additional housing
facilities located on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire (Dover), and Lehner Street In Wolfeboro,
New Hampshire (Hope House).

k  ■ * .

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEN), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families In the
Manchester. New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester. New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporatlpn.
At December 31. 2018, Outfitters operated an Independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization. During 2018,
management made the decision to close the Concord, New Hampshire thrift store location.

The Organization has several v4iolly-owned corporations which include Bicentennial- Families Concord.
Inc. (Bicentennial Families), Second Street Family Mil). Inc. (Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree. Inc. (Big
Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General Partners), all of which are New Hampshire
corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent the .01% sole general .partners in the IJmlted
Partnerships, vrtiereby Bicentennial Families is a. general partner of Bicentennial, Family MiB Is a
general partner of Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree Is a general partner pf Family Willows.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition ,to End
Homele^ness (NHCEH), a statewide .entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for
homeiessness through research, education and advocacy".

-7-



FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Decemt>er31, 2018 ,
(With Comparative Totala for Decem ber 31, 2017)

I

Effective Januafy 1. 2018, FIT and New Horizons for New Hampshire. Inc. (NHNH) merged to aeate
an integrated system of care that will provide an increased supply of affordable housing for those most
in need, sustain positive outcomes through the Incorporation of evidence based practices proven to
meet identified needs and goals. Identify areas for systemic and programmatic impmvements through
the use of consistent and accurate data to regularly measure success, and provide an Integrated
system of care-that will prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly rehouse those who become
homeless, including both the chronically homeless and families with children. The merger resulted in a
contribution of net assets of $3,430,951 as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 326,551
Other current assets 63,438
Cash surrender value of life insurance 33,676
Investments 1.780,456
Property and equipment, net 1,396,197
Accounts payable and accrued payroll (95,950)
Notes payable • r73.417)

Fair value of net assets acquired $ 3.430.951

The merger resulted in a contribution because the fair value of the identifiable assets exceeds the fair
value of the liabilities assumed and no consideration was transferred from NHNH.

On May 25, 2018, the Organization organized Wilson Street Condominium Association (the
Association) and Is the majority owner In the Association. The Association was established for the
purpose of maintaining and preserving a five unit premise located on Wlson Street in Manchester.
New Hampshire.

1. Summary of Sionlficant Accounting Policies " .

Principles of Consolidation .

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Flharictal
• Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 810-20-25, Consotidation,
the financial statements of each of the Limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated with
the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership Interest is
reported in the consolidated statements of finandal position as noncontroPing interest.

The consolidated financial statements Include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, the Ger>eral Partners, Housing Benefits; MEH. Outfitters, the Association, and
NHCEH. All significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the accompanying
' consolidated financial statements.

-8-



Families in Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire

Board of Directors

Board of Directors

David Cassidy, Co-Chairperson

Senior Vice President, Eastern Bank

Board member since 2018

Charia Bizios Stevens, Co -Chairperson

Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group
McLane Middleton, Professional Association Esquire

Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone, Vice Chairperson

Sr. Director Employee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast
Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley, Treasurer

President, CPA, CFP, Bartley Financial Advisor

Board member since 2018

Frank Saglio, Asst. Treasurer

Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC.

Board member since 2018

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary

First, Corporate and Foundation Relations

Board member since 2018

Roy Tilsley, At Large

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Scott W. Ellison, At Large

COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, Prior Co-Chairperson

President, Anagnost Companies

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration
Board member since 2018

AnnMarie French

Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy Institute

Board member since 2018

Rev. 1/1/2019 RS



Brian Hansen

Team Engineering, Project Manager

Board member since 2018

Brian Mikol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfield

Vice President, Commercial Lending, People's United Bank
Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage

Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrich

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations

Board member since 2018

Peter Telge

Owner, Stark Brewing Company

Board member since 2018

Roy Ballentine

Executive Chairman, Ballentine Partners, LLC

Board member since 2019

Ryan Mulholland

Westbridge

Board member since 2018

Sarah Jacobs

Manchester School District Coordinator

Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

Captain - Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department
Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormick, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager
Board member since 2018

Rev. 1/1/2019 RS



Maureen Ann Beauregard

Professional Experience

November 1991 to Present: Families inTransilion, 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH
03101.

1995-Prcsenl. President, Families in Transition. Developed a Board of Directors and
established Families in Transition as a private nonprofit agency in 1995. Responsible for
grant writing, fundraising, facility development, oversight of agency personnel, program
development, day to day operations, reporting to slate and federal agencies and public
relations.

• 20031O Present: Development and Implementation of 33 units permanent affordable
housing in Manchester.

• 2001-2003: Development of Families in Transition-Concord, 16 units of affordable
housing with 6 designated for homeless women with a disability and 10 designated
for transitional housing for homeless women and their children.

• 2001 to Present: Development of Families in Transition's social enlreprcncurship,
Family OutFITters thrift store and Employment Training Program.

•  1998 - 2001: Development ofMillyard D Transitional Housing Program with 19
apartments and I interim unit for 3 families.

•  1995 - 1997: Development ofMillyard I Transitional Housing Program with 12
apartments for homeless women with children.

•  1994 - 1995: Development of steering committee to form the Board of Directors for
Families in Transition and Families in Transition becomes and independent 501 ©

(3)

1991 • 199,4 New Hampshire Community Loan Fund. Program Director. Designed and
implemented transitional housing programs for the homeless women with and without
children. ■

•  1993 - 1994: Development and implementation of Community Program providing
supportive services to 14 homeless women and their children aiKl assisting them in
attaining and maintaining housing.

•  1992 - 1993: Development and implementation of Amherst Street Transitional
Housing Program for 9 homeless single women.

•  1991 - 1992: Development and implementationof Spruce Street Transitional
Housing Program for 5 homeless women and their children.

November 1989-Marcb 1991: Child Protective Service Worker 0 for the Division for Children
ar>d Youth Services, 30 Maplewood Avenue, Portsmouth, NH. Advocated for abused and
neglected children in court, established support network (fostercare, visitation, and
counseling) to help in the abuse/neglect recovery process.

November 1988-November 1989: Substance Abuse Counselor for Team Coordinating
Agency, Phoenix East, Haverhill, MA. Counseled clients, aided and found resources
(AA/NA meetings, employment, education, and counseling) for residents in halfway
house for alcoholic/addicts, age 16-25. Conducted weekly support group.



Education

Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New Hampshire, College of Life
Science and Agriculture. Area of study: Family Studies.

Professional Affiliations and Honors

1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Housing Investment Fund. Member of Board of
Directors.

1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Equity Fund. Member Board of Directors and
investment Committee

2004: New Hampshire Business Review, Business Excellence Awards 2004, Maureen
Beauregard for Excellence in Non-Profit
2004: The Walter J. Dunfey Awards for Excellence in Management awarded to Families in
Transition

2003: YWCA Susan B. Anthony Award, Woman of the Year
2003: New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority Annual Conference: Maureen Beauregard
and Families in Transition recognized as Best Practice for Development of Affordable
Housing in New Hampshire.
2002: Great Bay Foundation: $ 150,000 grant award for the development and implementation
of social entreprcneurship, Family OutFITtcrs.
2002: Citizens Bank and WMUR Channel - 9,2003 Community Champions Award for
Homelessness for New Hampshire
2001: Manchester Continuum of Care Narrative submission to the U.S. Dept. of Housing &
Urban Development, SuperNOFA: 1 of top 10 narratives In the country.
2003 to Present: YMCA Diversity Committee

2003 to Present: Intown Manchester, Economic Development Committee, Tmstee
2003: The Sharing Foundation, Caring for Cambodia's Children Parent Advisory Council
2003 to Present: New Hampshire Intcragcncy Council on Homelessness, member appointed
by Govemor Benson
2002 to Present: Policy Academy for the Chronically Homeless, member
2002 to Present: Great Bay Foundation, Work Group consisting of 5 leading initiatives,
member

2001 to Present: Manchester Task Force on Housing, member appointed by Mayor
1999 to Present: Northern New England Housing Investment Fund, Investment Committee,
Trustee

1998 to Present: Manchester Continuum of Care, Chairperson in 1998, 2003, founding
member



Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLADC

OBJECTIVE

Continue to and expand the clinical and management skills have I attained from my
professional and academic tiaining to secure a position in a nonprofit setting.

EDUCATION / LICENSURE ' .
Master — Mcensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor • September 2010-Present

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker October 22, 2012-PfC8eni

• Master of Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2010
•  Graduated with an MSW from the Advanced Standing Program

'• Bachelor of Art, Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2006
•  Graduated with an BSW with GPA of 3.41

FT^IOYMENT ^
Vice President, Clinical & Supportive Services
Families in Transition-New Horizons December 20'*', 2017 - present
•  Receivership-Interim Executive Director of Serenity Place
■  Oversees all clinlral and supportive services at Families in Transition-New Horizons including

emeigency sheker, transitional and permanent supportive housing. Intensive Outpaiicni Services,
Outpati^ services, Recovery Ffousing and programming. i

>  * Quality of control of heakhcaie facilities licensure. '
•  C5vcrsight of fidelity of evidence based practices and modck.
• Oversight of staff competencies and required trainings for best pracaces across the agency.
■  Supervision of agencyprogram managers and housing direaor.
•  Provide clinical supervisor for Ikensure and certifications.
• Qualrtycontrol of all billing policies and procedures.

Clinical Director

FamiUes in Transition Sept 1", 2016- December 2017
•  Oversee and manage Sr. Housing Program Manager who supervises the supponive services department with up

CO 25 staff providing housing (emergency, transitional and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to
serve 200 homeless individual and families. Supportive services eiKompass individual case management,
therapy, psycho-educational workshops, pro-social family actrvines and crisis intervention.

■  Oversee the Family Willows Program Manager who supervises 11 clinical staff who conduct ooccuning
treatment to women only

•  Develop and staff Recovery Pausing program and implementation of newest housing and supportive service
programming

•  Dcvebp and oversight Open Doors ouqxuicnt programming for ail transitional housing programs of FIT
•  Ensure quality programming across Famdies in Transitions clinical department
•  Provide training within the organization and community on substance misuse in NH
•  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition's various Supportive Service
•  Oversight of billing components of all levels of G>occuriing treatment.

Therapist January 2014- Present
Bedford Family Therapy

•  Treat a caseload of 15 clients in a private ouipaticat group practice



•  Utilize various evidence based practices CBTJ5BT, and Seeking Safety skOls to help clicnis meet their own
individual goals

•  Condua Drug and Alcohol assessments
•  Active participant in DWI Offender Program providing mandated outpatient session for individuals coming

from the Impaired privera Program
•  Participate in wcel^ supervision with other licensed clinicians part of the private group practice.

Clinical & Supportive Service Manager March 7***, 201^ August 31'*,2016
Families In Transition • « u

•  Manage the day to day operatbns for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including sw ̂ f members
•  Manage the day to day operations for the Housing program of Families in Transition consisting of over 200

apartment units in New Hampshire.
•  Provide clinical and administrative supervision for a total of 14 staff for FamiLes In Transition
•  Ensure compliance with budgccaryar^ financial goals.

■  Maintain compliance with State, Federal, Accreditation, Contraa and Insurance regulations.
•  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition's various Oinical Programs.

Program Manager of the Family WiUow Subatance Uac Treatment Program September 2014-2016
Families In Transition ,. • « u
•  Manage the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
•  Transitioned the program from grant funded to billing all commercial insurances
■  Increased accessibility of treatment from 86 clients in 2013 to 250 in 2016.
•  ProvidH and adminlCTrarive oversight of the FW Substaocc I.fee Treatment Pivgiam
•  Carried a caseload of 12-15 individual clients providing co-occurring evidence base therapeutic interventions.
•  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient treatment in a group setting on a wceWy basis to group of 12 women.
•  Provided training and cducauon to staff on clinical intervention and best practices in the group setting.

Therapist September 2014
Families lo Traoaitioo

•  Facilitated Intensive Outpatieni Programing in a group setting daily for up to 12 clients
•  Carried a caseload of up to 15 people for individual therapy.
•  Provided crisis services for the hotline of Families In Transition
■  Conducted Substance Use Disorder Assessments for incoming clients
•  Produced treatment plans, progress notes and supporting documentation in a timely manner
•  Helped implement new curricuJum changes in the treatment programming

MSW Intern May 2009 to May 2010
Bedford CbunscUhg - Mcnul Health Center of Greater Manchester
'  • Conducted intake interviews for new, aduk clients and develop comprehensive psycho-social assessments to

include diagnosis and substance use assessments
•  Provided psychotherapeuik intervention services to twenty-two indivkiuals using brief treatment and cognitive

behavioral interventions • ■ •
•  Attended therapeutic workshops pertaining to duakdiagnosis, behavioral health and client dnven treatment

planning

Case Manager 2006- May 2010
Families In Transition

•  Provided in home case management services to 30 indivkiuals and families to enhance housuig siabiuty among
the homeless popuhiioa

•  Provided crisis hotline coverage for ail ciinicaj programming of Families In Transition
•  Conducted program interviews for the commumty support propam
•  Maintained all &s with updated documentation, clear and concise progress notes and treatmcm plans
•  Facilitated workshops to help enhance overall wellness to participants of the program
•  Collaborated with community partners to increase referral resources

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
Providers Association Board of Directors-Vice Prcsidcm of Trearment July 2014 to Present
NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association January 2012 to Present
Member of the Manchester Substance Use Collaborative March 2012 to Present

PRFSF.NTATIONS

NH Association for infant mental health workshop Helping Parents Be Parents:
Addressing Substance Use and Trauma in a Family System- Loon Mountain June 2015



Providcffi Association: Addressing Substance Misuse in the Home Environment March 31n^016 at
Wcnrworth Douglas ftospitai in Dover, NH

REFERENCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST



Ann-Elise Bryant

Objective
Seeking a position as Case Manager

Education

Gordon College Wenham,MA
Bachelor of Alts in Ps)diobgy and Sociology CPA 3.57 May 2010
Honors; horrington Scholar, for academicpcrformanct in, and impact on, the Psycholo^ department and campus- one student

from each department chosen; Dean's Ust;graduated cum taude

Experience
Housing Advocate
Families In Transition, Manchester, NH Oaober 201S* Present
•  Responsible for an active case load of 33 individuals who wtre fonnerly homeless and are now

striving to increase self-sufficiency through addressing barriers such as substance use disorders,
mental heakh diagnoses, and trauma related symptoms while moving towards permanent, stable,
independent housing

•  Promote participants' growth in achieving goals related to the above mentioned barriers, in addition
to those related to irKrtasing financial, employment, and/or education related successes, throi^
providing support in home and community, advocacy, and inter-agency and community referrals

•  Eixourage appropriate community building through facilitating monthly dinners and other social
events

• Documem timely records of ail participant and collaborative meetings and maintain necessary file
documentation such as up-to-date Action Plans, Case Management Needs Identifiers, and Releases
of Information

Supportive Services Case Manager
Somerville Homeless Coalition, Somerville, MA , March 2014-Oaobcr 2015

• Managed an active case load of 12-18 individuals who ̂ rc formerly homeless and in recovery from
subst^e abuse addiction and/or mental heahh diagnoses

•  Provided services in home and community as outlined on an Individual Service Plan (ISP) in
conjunction with supports to promote retention of permanent housing, sobriety, and symptom
management

•  Responded to crisis situations (iiKluding relapse) and utilized Harm Reduction tactics to promote
client safety

•  Produced documentation of ail clieiu interactions and maintained up-to-date ISPs and assessments

Supported Employment Specialist
Genesis Behavbral Heakh, Laconia, NH January 2013- February 2014
•  Supported an active case load of 25-30 individuals with Severe and Persistent Mental Illness (SPMI)

prirraLrily with employment search and school related activities in the community using an
Individualized Service Plan (ISP) to provide optimal treatment within a team approach

• Documemcd all interactions with clients to maintain cominuity of care within and, if necessary,
outside of agency

•  Provided emergency services such as Crisis Intervention, support to local hospital emergency rooms,
and/or contact of local authorities when necessary



•  Faciliuaed more effective, streamlined processes for ssorking in conjunction with local s^encies, as
viell as within the Supported Employment team in the areas of service provision to clients and new
hire training

Research Data Coordinator

Institute for Community Irrclusion, Boston, MA November 2010- December 2011
•  Conducted research related activities (e.g. interviews, transcribing, licranare reviews) on two projects

focused on aiding individuals with disabilities
• Worked as a member of a research team and attended, and sometimes led, team meetings

Teaching Assistant
Gordon College, Wenham, MA Ai^vsi 2008- March 2010
•  small group meetings ranging from six to twelve students and was responsible for grading

students* papeis and providii^ extra help, advice, and instruction
•  Anended preparation and follow*-\jp meeting?

Private Babysitter
North Shore of Boston, MA December 2007-May 2010
•  Provided care for children ages 3 months- 10 )ears old through such activities as creating productive

playtime, aiding with homework help, and meeting basic needs (mealtime, bathing, hundering)

Food Program and Groceries Intern
Rosie's Plic, Boston, MA September 2008- December 2008
•  Completed internship through Gordon College's Boston Urban Semester primarily assisting women

with their grocery selections in the food pantry while learning about the services provided duougb
this or^nization (e.g. legal, housing, and health services)

Kefmncts avdhble upon nquesl



CONTRACTOR NAME

F/r PH VJL
Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Maureen Beauregard President 153,699 0% -

Meghan Shea VP of Clinical Seryices 85,000 30% 25,500

Ann-Elise Bryant Program Manager 43,000 20% 8,600



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Continuum of Care. Concord Community Permanent Housing Program. SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-08

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641-9441

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

September 30, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$105,327

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature ^ 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: State ofNew Hampshire, County of Hillsborough

On July 16, 2019 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public

_  J t J j My Commtsston BxpSm Septaiibar 6,2023

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary orOUstice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin. Asst., Notary Public

1.14 iST^e Agenc^ignaturjBv rs

\jMyyhiu /ITIK
NamTand Title of State Agency Signatory

CIl 1 ikniM 07/^//,/ i
1.16 Approval by the N.H. (D^tpartmenl of Administratfpn, Division of Personnel Cr/"a/7p//caWe^ ' ' " /

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by t^ Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

0"^ ~7/uljx>lj
1.18 Approv&l by the^ovemor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certiricate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements arid understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify sen/ice priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed In the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578; CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy. Including
specific Information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which Is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.
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2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing Program that is targeted to serve ten (10)
Individuals in Merrlmack County with tenant-based, rental assistance and supportive services, and
which includes but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, volcemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Particioant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(li)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those sen/ices. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.
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2.4. The Contractor shail maintain records that document compliance with;

2.4.1. The Oraanizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements In 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts recuirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Afflrmativelv Furthering Fair Housina bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to Inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Recuirements In 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confldentialitv. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and Implement written procedures to ensure:

i  ;

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period In excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.
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3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shali submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be In the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to the following:

5.1.1.1. httDS://www.hudexchanqe.info/Droarams/coc/svstem-Derformance-measures/#auidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR Part 578; Continuum of Care Program; and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the sen^ices to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement Is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0006L1T001811

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care, Pennanent Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. October 1. 2019-September 30, 2020, not to exceed $105,327

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program

.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $15,855

.2.8.2. Leasing: $87,019

.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2,453

.2.8.4. Total program amount: $105,327

.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%, excluding Leasing) $4,577

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requlrementsof 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bvthe State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth In 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and. In some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found In 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

•  3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Pavment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit 8.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit 8..
all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinqsuDDortsinvolces@dhhs.nh.qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial Information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs Incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, Inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made. It shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part. In the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 8. or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense Eligibility

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Qperatinc Exoenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

: 5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. Supportive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal sen/ices. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the; community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subreclpient, eligible
costs for those services are described In 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless Individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing funds
onlv: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size In which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be

tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance If they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may Include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program. Involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job Includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following: [l
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leaslno:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organization(s), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable In relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities, if the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive sen/ice cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly: funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with ail State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or sen/ices.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other sen/ices such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management System

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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FamlllM In Transition - Concord Community Ptrmantnl Housing

CoC Funds

SF.Vi'JLjiy/j/iy-v/jy/i'j.
TOTAL PROGRAM COST |1  CONTRACTOR SHARE | 8HS SHARE i

Activity Nama BUDGET 1 YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Leasing 8 05.284 S % 8 8 - 8 8  05,204 8

Supportivo Servicas 11,801 s S 8 - 8  11,801 8

Administration 1,840 s t 8  1.840 8 • 8 8

25% Required Match (excluding Leasing) 3,433 s % 8  3.433 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE t 82.428 s 8  8.273 8 - 8  77,158 8

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

j P.Vii -'J/ J'J/i'J.
CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Namt BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

Leasing 21,7S5

Suppordva Sarvicas

Adminiitratlon

2S% Raqulrad Match (excluding Leasing)
TSTXrnOBTOHBSJBXroiCE 27.47a

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTO R SHARE BhSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Leasino 07.010 87,010

Supportive ServlcM is.ass

Adminisirsdon 2.453

25% Required Match (excluding Leasing)

TOTAL HUDPUNDSAAUMCE 7.030 102.874

Total W/C Match I 105.327

FIT Concord Community Pormanenl Housing
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sul>contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials.
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities; In addition to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in theProposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production, '
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOR); The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that.its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj7about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
In Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, Generai Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications In its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days afier such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

M.Exhibit D - Certification regardlr>g Drug Free Vendor Initials.
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH. Inc.

Date Name: Maureen Beauregard ^
Title. President

Exhibit 0 - Certtfication regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

IJuly 16, 2019 ]/ y^njnjTi II
Date Nante: Maureen Beauregard

Title: President

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Vendor lnitialsl(l(]^
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and Its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for othenA/ise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

July 16. 2019

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name: Maureen Beaureaard PDate Name: Maureen Beauregard
Title: president

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initials,
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the '
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Vendor Initials
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

2019
Date Nam^ Maureen Beauregard

President
Tte:

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16. 2019 (TXfLlH,! up
Date Name/ Maureen Beauregard ^

President

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Vendor Initial^
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HEALTH iNSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AooreQation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "Individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExhibiM Vendor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement . ,
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor lnitials|j\g /
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

<3) ObllQations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identiftcation;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving^PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busines
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate ackno\Arledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State \

V jiAohiO
Signature of AuthorizEd Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

04 itT
Title of Authorized Representative

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name of the Vendor,

Signature of
//

Authorized Representativeititiv(
I

Maureen Beauregard

Name of Authorized Representative

President

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

July 16. 2019

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certifcation:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16. 2019
Date Nanfe: Maureen Beauregard ^

President

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Initials.
Accountability Ar>d Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 825360399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misroutlng of physical or electronic

vs. Lastupdate 10/09/16 ExhIbitK Contractor Initial
DHHS Information

Security Requirements

M?

Page 1 of 9 Date July 16, 2019



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, SubpartiC, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

iai
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the sun/ey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://\Aww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance \with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information Is involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary ofStateof the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thafFIT/NHNH, INCis aNew
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13,1994.1 further certify that all fees
and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is
concerned.

Business ID; 207982

Certificate Number 0004088815

uu

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26tb day of April A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. David Cassidv do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of FIT/NHNH. Inc
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on July 16. 2016 :
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain In full force and effect as of

the 16 day of Julv ■ 2019

4.

(Date Contract Signed)

Maureen Beaureoard

(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborouoh

is the duly elected President

(Title of Contract Signatory)

iignaturd'of the Elected Officer)

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 16 day of Julv ■ 2019

By David Cassidv

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

otary Publfc/Ju^tice of the Peace)

RUTH A. SYREK, htotaiy Pubite

NH DHHS. Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationshiip Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1.2005



FAMIINT-01 DBEAUDOIN

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

2/7/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy|les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Moriill & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

wc,n\exi»: (603) 225-6611 | Kc.no);(603) 225-7935
l«SS:

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVFRAGF NAIC*

INSURER A; Philadelohla Insurance Comoanv 23850

INSURED

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
122 Market St

Manchester, NH 03101

INSURER B' HvaKh Car* S Human Sarvleaa Half inautvd Group

INSURER C:

INSURER D;

INSURER E:

INSURER F ;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL

IN3D
SUBR

WYD POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EFF
IMMinrVYYVYl

POLICY EXP
UMITS

A X COMMERaAL 6EJ/ERAL LIABILITY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR

/

PHPK1923495 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

1 CLAIMS4i1At DAMAGE TO RENTED ,  1,000,000
,  20,000

-

PERSONAL a AOV INJURY
,  1,000,000

OFNl. AGGREGATE UMIT APPUES PER; QFNFRAl AGGREGATE j  3,000,000

POUCYU^JgSf \JJloc
OTHFR-

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
,  3,000,000

s

A AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

PHPK1923501 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT ,  1,000,000
X ANY AUTO

BODILY INJURY (Par earaeni i

AUTOS ONLY

only

sc
AL

HEDULEO
ITOS

H.QWNEP
rTM ONLY

BODIl Y INJURY (Par acddantt %

NC
Al

WIOPERTY DAMAGE
(Par Bcddanli s

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CUMMS-MAOE PHUB659752 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE ,  5,000,000

AGGREGATE »

DEO 1 X 1 RETENTION S 0 ,  5,000,000
B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE ("771
CFRCER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatoryln NH) ' '

l/yas. deachb* und«r
DESCRIPTION OF OPFRATIONR tmiow

N/A

HCHS20190000102 2/1/2019 2/1/2020

PER 1 1 OTH-
KTATTITF 1 1 FR

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
,  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
s  1,000,000

EL DCSEASF-POUCY IIMIT
s  1,000,000

A

B

Professional Liab

Worker's Compensatio

PHPK1923495

HCHS20190000102

1/1/2019

2/1/2019

1/1/2020

2/1/2020

See Below

Excess 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD101. AddlSenai Ramarka Schadult. may ba attached H mor* tpact it raqulrad)
Professional Liability Limits p. s ,
$1,000,000 each lncldent/S3,000,000 aggregate

Workers Compensation Information
3A State: NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of NH, OHMS
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Families in Transition
122 Market Street

Manchester^ NH 03101
TeL 603-641-9441

Fax, 603-641-1244

Families
in Transition

Mission

To provide safe and affordable housing and

comprehensive social services to individuals

and families who ̂ e homeless or who are at risk of

becoming homeless, enabling them to gain

self-sufficiency and respect.
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, inc. and Subsidiaries.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FIT/NHNH, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
Decemt>er 31, 2016 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

j

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the,preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financlai
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated'financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated, financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatemenL

I  *

\

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and .disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. .The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment.
Including the asse^ment of the risks of material misstatement of- the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant .to the eritity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. Ar) audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

\)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2018. arvf the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year th^ ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Bangof. ME • Portland. ME • Manchester. NH • Glastonbury. CT • Charieston, WV • Phoenix, A2
beffydunn.com



Board of Directors
FiT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2 .

/Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2017 consolidated financial statements and, in our
report dated March 30. 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements, in our opinion, the summarized comparative Information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Maffer

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a v^ole. The accompanying supplementary infonmation, which consists of the^
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2016, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individual entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financiatstatements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting ar^d other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additiorval procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated .financial
statements or to the cor^lidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
staled in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed In Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2018 the Organization adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2018-14, Presentatign of

.Financial Statements for Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958). Our opinion is not modified with re'splKt'^ff"
this matter.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 18, 2019



FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31,2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash end cash equivalents
Funds held as fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Grants and contnlHrtions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment In related entity
Asset held for sale

Property and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assels, net

Total assels

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long^erm debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held as fiscal agent
Due to related entity
Line of credit

Other current liabilities

2Q18

1,698,033 $

52,211
766,343

80,007
35,613
48.110

2,600,317

336,678
718,154

1,336.684
1.000

429,779
28,530,819
3,605,450
138.473

2017

1,062,497
96.383

38,350
451,664

33,229

43.097

1.725.250

292.264

722,130

1.000

26,210,337
• 2,090,031

50.000

$  37.757.154 $ 31.091.012

$  1,116,180
249,907
348,095

35,613
145,000

216,147
220,828
217,675
98,383

Total current liabilities* 1.977,270 800,538

Long-term debt, less current portion, net of unamortized deferred costs 13.604.017 11.264.521

Total liabilities 15.581.287 12.065.059

Net assels

Without donor restrictions • conlrolltrig Interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrofling InteresI

17,744,537
3.243.694

14,563,053
3.565478

Total without donor restrictions 20,988,231 18,128,531

With donor restrictions 1.187.636 897 422

Total net assets
1

22.175.867

Total liabilities and net assets S  37.757.154 S 31.091.012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NKNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Conaolldated Statament of ActlvltiM

Year Endad Dacombar 31,2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Endad December 31, 2017)
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The accompanying notes ere an integral pan of these consoiidatad financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31,2017)

Pfogram Aclivibes

ManaQerT>ent 2016 2017
Housino Ttirift Slore Fundraisino and General Totol Total ■

Dries end benefits

Salaries and wages S 3.492.775 $  316,195 %  518,402 % ' 355,442 $ 4,662.614 $ 3,168.356
Employee benefits 400.701 24,951 54,002 37.770 617,604 340,575
Payroll taxes 262810 24.440 39.746 28593 353.689 234,204

Total salaries and

benefits 4.1S6.366 365.586 612,150 419,605 6,553,907 3.752.145

er expenses

Advertising 15.016 25,068 18.948 69,032 36,236
Application arid permit fees 1.620 - . 1,620 2.015
Bad debts 28.100 - . 28.100 28,124
Bank charges 573 8.847 11.445 20.885 17.875
Consultants 19.504 2.647 4.647 2.463 29.481 78.138
Oeprecialion 933.878 11,093 115,347 51.612 1,111.930 '  1.003.294
Events 3.550 •  2,814 160,685 . 167,049 61.181
General insurance 124.791 3.523 14.318 13,248 155,880 153.904
Grant expense 59.149 . • . 69,149 .

Interest experue 228.999 714 - . 229.713 188.473
Management fees 8.622 - . . 6,622 6.487
Meals arul entertainment. 4.740 179 656 547 6,122 5.181
Membership dues 10.790 . 1.741 3.458 16,969 10.022
Merger expenses - - . 137.747 137,747 1.000
Office suppSes 282.398 6,460 43.158 36.139 370.165 134.490
Partldpanl expanses 118.915 45 379 379 117,718 99.219
Postage 7.324 9 4.274 1,758 13,365 7,804
Printing 16.755 2.745 19.129 * 2.066 40,717 24,577
Professional fees 53,906 3.500 - 112,417 169,823 182,974
Related entity expense (159.398) 159,398 ' - . -

Rental subsidies 332.270 . - . 332,270 298,272
Repairs and maintenance 370.123 34.325 42,145 16,169 462.762 409.132
Shelter expertse 166.891 - - . .168,891 .

Staff development 31,568 96 4,006 3.340 39,034 23,136
•Taxes • 313,813 Z307 • . 315,920 326,164
Technology support 190.132 2.231 28,762 23.666 244,811 65,457
Telephone 68.992 5,056 10.095' 8.778 •. 112,921 90.917

Travel 40,914 3.645 5,191 4,222 64,172 44.486

UtifitlBS 512,260 31.481. 52.007 17,767 613,495 444.062
VISTA program • 320.659 - - • 320,859 359.804
Workers', compertsalion 111.884 14.223 13 229 9.220 148.356 04.544

Total expenses $ 6.390.926 S  668.374 % 1.131.941 S  897234 S11.106.475 $ 7.939.133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended OecemlTer 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net cash provided l}y

operating activities
Depredation and amortization
Grants sr>d contributions for capital projects
Effect of consolidation of affiliata. net of cash held by consolidated affiliate

or$32e,5St

Forgiveness of debt
Urtrealized loss (gain) on Investments
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Decrease (Increase) In:

Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
'Other assets

Increase (decrease) In:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other current Dabililies

fVet cash prosMed by operating actlvllies

Cash flows from Investing activities
Repayments of advances to related parties
Net (deposits to) withdrawals from resanre eecounls
Proceeds from sale of Investments

.  Investment in development In process
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Acquisition of property end equipment

Net cash used by Investing activities

Cash flows from fInarKirig activities
Grants and contributhms for capital projects
Net borrowings from line of credit
Proceeds from long*tenm borrowings
Payments on long-term debt ' . *

Net cash provided by ftrtanclng activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure
Acquisition of property and equipment through ior^lerm bonowings from seller

Property and equipment transferred from development in process

201B 2017

3,149,914 S 915,494

1,125,127
(560,790)

1,016,491
(1.536.770)

(3.104;4a0)
(131,267)
168,948
10,115

(131,267)
(1.270)
(5.133)

42,130
(334,679)
(39,301)

(119,810)

(16,731)
(126.246)-

2,609
(302)

(21.268)
84,606
35,613
32971

51,641 .
9,744

1.398

338.019 175.056'

(35.613)
(40.336)
275,024

(1,515,419)

(2.476.1091

6,206
57,348

4,264
(1,931.040)

5,133

(162.691)

f3.792.45S) (2.018.7781

660,790
145,000

3,507,201
1223.019)

1,538.770

772.009
(203120)

3.989.972 2.107.659-

535.536 ' 264.737

1.062.497 • 797.7W

1.598.033 S 1.062.497

i S 60.615

2.222.138 S

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Organization

Families in Transition. Inc. (FIT or the Organization) Is a New Hampshire nonprofit, incorporated on
May 13, 19,94. to provide housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who
are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless In certain areas of southem New Hampshire, including
Manchester, Concord and Dover.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street.
Spruce Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester. New Hampshire. Additiorial housing
facilities are owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization is the sole
g^eral partner. These limited partnerships Include Bicentennial Families Concord Limited Partnership
(Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester. New Hampshire; and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

In 2008, the Organization created a Community Development Housing Organization, Housing Benents,
IrK. (Housing Benefits). Housing Benefits identifies and develops new housing units and refurbishes
existing units to meet the persistent need of combating homelessness. Completed housing units are
located on School & Third Street, Lowell Street, Belmont Street, Market Street (Millyard I and Millyard
II), Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New Hampshire as well as an additional housing
facilities located on Central Avenue In Dover, New Hampshire (Dover), and Lehner Street in Wolfeboro,
New Hampshire (Hope House).

In 2012. the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families In the
Manchester New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester. New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters. LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporation.
At December 31, 2018, Outfitters operated an independent thrift store in Manchester. New HampsNre
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization. During 2018,
management made the decision to close the Concord, New Hampshire thrift store location.

The Organization has several whoHy'Owned corporations which include Bicentennial Families Concord,
Inc. (Bicentennial Famili^),'Second Street Family Mill. Inc. (Family Mill), and Big Shady .Tree, Inc. (Big
Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General Partners), all of which are New Hampshire
corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent the .01% sole general.partners In the Limited
Partnerships, whereby Bicentennial Families is a. general partner of Bicentennial, Family MiD is a
general partner of Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree Is a general partner of Family Willows.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition 'to End
Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide .entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for
homelessness through research, education and advocacy".

-7-



FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 .
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)-

Effective January 1, 2018, FIT and New Horizons (or New Hampshire. Inc. (NHNH) merged to create
an Integrated system of care that will provide an Increased supply of affordable housing (or those most
In need, sustain positive outcomes through the Incorporation of evidence based practices proven to
meet identified needs and goals, identify areas for systemic and programmatic improvements through
the use of consistent and accurate data to regularly measure success, and prowde an integrated
system of care-that will prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly rehouse those who become
homeless. Including both the chronically homeless and families with children. The merger resulted In a
contribution of net assets of $3,430,951 as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 326.551
Other current assets 63,438
Cash surrender value of life Insurance 33,676
Investments 1,780,456
Property and equipment, net 1,396.197
Accounts payable and accrued payroll (95,950)
Notes payable • (73.4171

Fair value of net assets acquired - $ 3.430.951

The merger resulted In a contribution because the fair value of the Identifiable assets exceeds the fair
value of the liabilities assumed and no consideration was transferred from NHNH.

On May 25, 2018, the Organization organized Wilson Street Condominium Associaiion (the
Association) and is the majority owner in the Association. The Association was established for the
purpose of maintaining and preserving a five unit premise located on Wilson Street in Manchester.
New Hampshire.

1. Summary of Sionlflcant Accounting Poilcies

Principles ofConsolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
• Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 810-29-25, Consolidation,
the financial statements of each of the limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated with
the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position as noncontroliing interest.

The consolidated financial statements Include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, the General Partners, Housing Benefits,- MEH, Outfitters, the Association, and
NHCEH. All significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminate in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Families in Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire
Board of Directors

Board of Directors

David Cassidy, Co-Chairperson

, Senior Vice President, Eastern Bank

Board member since 2018

Charia Bizios Stevens, Co -Chairperson
Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group

McLane Middleton, Professional Association Esquire
Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone, Vice Chairperson

Sr. Director Employee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley, Treasurer

President, CPA, CFP, Bartley Financial Advisor

Board member since 2018

Frank Saglio, Asst. Treasurer

Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC.

Board member since 2018.

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary

First, Corporate and Foundation Relations

Board member since 2018

Roy Tilsley, At Large

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

I

Scott W. Ellison, At Large

COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, Prior Co-Chairperson

President, Anagnost Companies
Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration
Board member since 2018

AnnMarle French

Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy Institute

Board member since 2018
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Brian Hansen

Team Engineering, Project Manager
Board member since 2018

Brian MIkol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfield

Vice President, Commercial Lending, People's United Bank
Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage
Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrich

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations
Board member since 2018

Peter Telge

Owner, Stark Brewing Company
Board member since 2018

RoyBallentine

Executive Chairman, Ballentine Partners, LLC
Board member since 2019

Ryan Mulholland

\/Vestbridge

Board member since 2018

Sarah Jacobs

Manchester School District Coordinator

Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton
Captain - Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department

Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormick, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director \A/ealth Manager
Board member since 2018

Rev. 1/1/2019 RS



Maureen Ann Beauregard

Professional Experience '

November 1991 to Present: Families in Transition, 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH
03101.

1995-Present. President, Families in Transition. Developed a Board of Directors and
established Families in Transition as a private nonprofit agency in 1995. Responsible for
grant writing, fundraising, facility development, oversight of agency personnel, program
development, day to day operations, reporting to state and federal agencies and public
relations. :

•  20031O Present: Development and Implementation of 33 units peimanenl affordable
, housing in Manchester.

•  2001-2003: Development of Families in Transition - Concord, 16 units of affordable
housing with 6 designated for homeless women with a disability and 10 designated
for transitional housing for homeless women and their children.

•  2001 to Present: Development of Families in Transition's social entrepreneurship,
Family OutFITters thrift store and Employment Training Program.

•  1998 - 2001: Development ofMillyard n Transitional Housing Program with. 19
apartments and 1 interim unit for 3 families.

•  1995 - 1997: Development of Millyard ITransitional Housing Program with 12
apartments for homeless women with children.

.♦ 1994 - 1995: Development of steering committee to form the Board of Directors for
Families in Transition and Families in Transition becomes and independent 501 ©

(3)

1991 -1994 New Hampshire Community Loan Fund. Program Director. Designed and
implemented transitional housing programs for the homeless women with and without
children. i

•  1993 - 1994: Development and implementation of Community Program providing
supportive services to 14 homeless women and their children and assisting them in
attaining and maintaining housing.

•  1992 - 1993: Development and implementation of Amherst Street Transitional
Housing Program for 9 homeless single women.

•  1991 - 1992: Development and implementation of Spruce Street Transitional
Housing Program for 5 homeless women and their children.

November 1989-Marcb 1991: Child Protective Service Worker II for the Division for Children

and Youth Services, 30 Maplewood Avenue, Portsmouth, NH. Advocated for abused and
neglected children in court, established support network (fostercare, visitation, and
counseling) to help in the abuse/neglect recovery process.

November 1988-November 1989: Substance Abuse Counselor for Team Coordinating
Agency, Phoenix East, Haverhill, MA. Counseled clients, aided and found resources
(AA/NA meetings, employment, education, and counseling) for residents in halfway
house for alcoholic/addicts, age 16-25. Conducted weekly support group.



Education

Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New Hampshire, College of Life
Science and Agriculture. Area of study: Family Studies.

Professional Affiliations and Honors

1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Housing Investment Fund. Member of Board of
Directors.

11998 to 2004 - Northern New England Equity Fund. Member Board of Directors and
Investment Committee

2004: New Hampshire Business Review, Business Excellence Awards 2004, Maureen
Beauregard for Excellence in Non-Profit
2004: The Walter J. Dunfcy Awards for Excellence in Management awarded to Families in
Transition

2003: YWCA Susan B. Anthony Award, Woman of the Year
2003: New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority Annual Conference: Maureen Beauregard
and Families in Transition recognized as Best Practice for Development of Affordable
Housing in New Hampshire.

2002: Great Bay Foundation: $ 150,000 grant award for the development and implementation
of social enlrepreneurship. Family OutFITters.
2002: Citizens Bank and WMUR Channel - 9,2003 Community Champions Award for
Homclessncss for New Hampshire
2001: Manchester Continuum of Care Narrative submission to the U.S. Dept. of Housing &
Urban Development, SupcrNOFA: 1 of top 10 narratives in the country.
2003 to Present: YMCA Diversity Committee
2003 to Present: Intown Manchester, Econonuc Development Committee, Trustee.
2003: The Sharing Foundation, Caring for Cambodia's Children Parent Advisory Council
2003 to Present: New Hampshire Interagency Council on Homelessness, member appointed
by Governor Benson
2002 to Present: Policy Academy for the Chronically Homeless, member
2002 to Present: Great Bay Foundation, Work Group consisting of 5 leading initiatives,
member

2001 to Present: Manchester Task Force on Housing, member appointed by Mayor
1999 to Present: Northern New England Housing Investment Fund, Investment Committee,
Trustee

1998 to Present: Manchester Continuum of Care, Chairperson in 1998, 2003, founding
member



Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLADC

OBJECTIVE

CoDcinue to utilize and expand the clinical and management skills have I attained from my
professional and academic training to secure a position in a nonprofit setting.

EDUCATION / LICENSURE
Master-Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor . September 2010-Present

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker October 22,2012-Pre6ent

Master of Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2010
•  Graduated with an MSW from the Advanced Standing Program

Bachelor of Art, Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2006
■  Graduated with an BSW with GPA of 3.41

EMPLOYMENT

Vice President, Clinical Sc Supportive Services
Families in Transition-New Horizons December 20^^, 2017 - present

■  Reccivcnhip-Imerim Executive Direaor of Serenity Place
• Oversees ail clinical and supportive services at Families in Transition-New Horizons including

emergency shelter, transitional and penmanem supportive housing, Intensive Outpatient Services,
Outpati^ services, Recovery Ffousing and prt>gramming. j

'  • Qualiryof control of healthcare facilities licensure. '
• Oversight of fidelity of.evidence based practices and models.
• Oversight of staff competencies and required trainings for best practices across the agency.
•  Supervision of agcncyprogram managers and housing direaor.
•  Provide chnical supervisor for licensure and certifications.
• Quaiitycontrolof allbiilingpoliciesandproccduies.

Clinical Director

Families in Transition Sept 1»', 2016- December 2017
•  Oversee and manage Sr. Housing Program Manager who supervises the supportive services depaitmcm with up

to 25 staff providing housing (emergency, transiuonal and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to
serve 200 homeless individual and families. Supportive services encompass individual case management,
therapy, ps>cho-educauonal worichops, pro-social familyaciivities and crisis btervention.

■  Oversee the Family Willows Program Manager who supervises 11 clinical staff who conduct cooccurring
treatment to women only

•  Develop and staff Recovery Housing program and implementation of newest housing and supportive service
programming

•  Develop and oversight Open Doors outpatient programming for all transitional housing programs of FIT
•  Ensure quality programming across Families in Transitions clinical department
•  Provide training whhin the organization and community on substance misuse in NH.
•  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transitioo's various Supportive Service
•  Oversight of billing components of ̂  levels of Co-occuiring creaimcm.

Therapist January 2014-Present
Bedford Family Therapy

■  Treat a caseload of 15 clients in a private outpaiicm group practice



■  Utilize various evidence based practices CBTJDBT, and Seeking Safety skills to help clients tneet their own
individual goals

•  Gondua Drug and Alcohol assessments
•  Active participant in DWI Offender Program providing mandated outpatient session for individuals coming

from the Impaired Drivers Program
"  Participate in tveeldy supervision with other licei>5ed clinicians part of the private group pracdce.

Clinical Sc Supportive Service Manager March 7*^, 2016- August 31*',2016
Families In Transition

•  Manage the day to day operations for the Family ̂OCUlows Substance Lfee Program including six staff members
' Mana^ the day to day operations for the Housing program of Families In Transition consisting of over 2X

apartment units in New Hampshire.
•  Provide clinical and administrative supervision for a.total of 14 staff for Fantilies In Transirion
•  E nsure compliance with budgetary and fuurKiai goals.
•  Maintain compliance with State, Federal, Accreditation, Contract and Insurance regulations.
•  Administer all program policies and procedure for Famiiies-In Traitsiuon's various Qlnical Programs.

Program Manager of the Family Willow Substance Use Treatment Progrt^ September 2014-2016
Families In Transition

•  Manage the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff mernbers
■  Transitioned the program from grant funded to billing all commercial insurances
"  Increased accessibilityof treatment from 86 clients in 2013 to 250 in 2016.
•  Provided clinical and administrative oversight of the FW Substance Ifcc Treatment Program
■  Carried a caseload of 12-13 individual clients providing cooccurring evidence base therapeutic interventions.
•  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient treatment in a group setting on a weekly basis to group of 12 women.
•  Provided training and educatbn to staff on clinical inierveadon and best practices in the group setting.

Therapist May 2010- September 2014
Families la TraDsitioo

•  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient Prograrrung in a group setting daily for up to 12clients
' Canied a caseload of up to 15 people for individual therapy.
•  Provided crisis services for the hotline of Families In Transition
■  Conducted Substance Use Disorder Assessments for incoming clients
■  Produced treatment plans, progress notes and supporting documenadon in a timely rrtanner
•  Help^ implement new curriculum changes in the treatment programming '

MSWIatcrh May 2009 to May 2010
Bedfo^ Cbuoselitig - Mental Health Cetiter of Greater Manchester
>  • Conducted intake interviews for new, adult clients and develop comprehensive psycbo-socuJ assessments to

include diagnosis and substance use assessments
■  Provided psycbotherapeutic intervendon services to cwency-cwo individuals using brief treatment and cognidve

behavioral incervendons

•  Attended therapeutic workshops pertaining to dual-diagnosis, behavioral health and client driven treatment
, planning

Case Manager June 2006- May 2010
Families In Transition

•  Provided in home case rtunagement services to 30 individuals and families to enhance housing stability among
the homeless popuhdon.

"  Provided crisis hotline coverage for all clinical programming of Families In Transidon
•  Conducted program interviews for the commumcy support program
• Maintained all files with updated documentation, clear and concise prt)gness rK)tes and treatment plans
•  Facilitated workshops to help enhance overall wellness to paidcipants of the program
•  Collaborated with community partners to increase referral resources

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
Providers Association Board of Directors-Vkc President of Treatment July 2014 to Present
NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Associadoo January 2012 to Present
Member of the Manchester Substance Use Collaborative March 2012 to Present

PRESENrTATIONS

NH Associatioa for infant mental health workshop Helping Parents Be Parents:
Addressing Substance Use and Trauma in a FamilySystenv Loon Mountain June 2015



Providers Association: Addressing Substance Misuse in the Home Environment March 31niOl6 at
Wcncwoith Douglas Hospital in Dover, NH

REFERENCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST

\
I



Ann-EUse Bryant

Objective
Seeking a position as Case Manager

Education

Gordon College Wenham,MA
Bachelorof Arts in Psychology and Sociology GPA3.57 May2010
Honors: Barrin^ton Scholar. Jor acadtmicpaformanct in, and impact on, the P^chology, department and campus- one student

from each department chosen; Dean'/ IJst; ffvduated cum iaude

Experience
Housing Advocate
Families In Transition, Manchester, NH • October 20IS-Present
•  Responsibie for an active case load of 33 individuals who were formeity homeless arid are now

striving to increase self-sufficiency through addressing barriers such as substance use disorders,
mental heakh diagnoses, and trauma related symptoms while moving towards permanent, stable;
independent housing

•  Promote participants* growth in achieving goals related to the above n*ntioned barriers, in addition
to those related to increasing financial, employment, and/or education related successes, throi^
providing support in home juid community, advocacy, and inter-agency and community referrab

•  Encourage appropriate community building through facilitating monthly dinners and other soci^
events

,  • Document timely records of all participant and collaborative meetings and maintain necessary file
documentation such as up-to-die Action Plans, Case Management Needs Identifiers, and Releases
of Information

Supportive Services Case Manager
Somerville Homeless Coalitioa, Somerville, MA , March 2014- Oaober 2015
• Managed an active case bad of 12-18 individuals who wre formeiiy homeless and in recovery from

substance abuse addiction and/or mental heahh diagnoses
•  Provided services in home and community as outlined on an Individual Service Plan (ISP) in

conjunction with supports to promote retention of permanent housing, sobriety, and symptom
management

•  Responded to crisis situations (including relapse) and utilized Harm Reduction tactics to promote
client safety

•  Produced documentation of all client interactions and maintained up-to-date ISPs and assessments

Supported Employment Specialist
Genesis Bchavbral Health, Laconia, NH January 2013- February2014
•  Supported an active case load of 25-30 individuals with Severe and Persbtcnt Mental Illness (SPMI)

primarily with employment search and school related activities in the community using an
Individualized Service Plan (ISP) to provide optimal treatment within a team approach

• DocumeiKed aO interactions with clients to maintain continuity of care within and, if necessary,
outside of agency

•  Provided emeigency services such as Crisis Iniervemion, support to local hospital emeigency rooms,
and/or contaa of local authorities when necessary



•  Facilitated more effective, streamlined processes for working in conjunction with local agencies, as
w«ll as within the Supported Employment team in the areas of service provision to clients and new
hiretraining

Research Data Coordinator

Institute for Community Inclusion, Boston, MA November 2010- December 2011
•  Conduaed research related activities (e.g. interviews, transcribing, literature reviews) on two projects

focused on aiding individuals with disabilities
• Worked as a member of a research team and attended, and sometimes led, team meetings

Teaching Assistant
Gordon College, Wenham, MA August 2008- March 2010
•  Lead small group meetings ranging from sbc to twelve students and was responsible for grading

students' papeis and providing extra help, advice, and instruction
•  Anended preparation and follow*-up meetings

Private Babysitter
North Shore of Boston, MA December 2007-May 2010
•  Provided care for children ages 3 months- 10 )«ars old through such activities as creating productive

playtime, aiding with homework help, and meeting basic neei (n^ahimc, bathing, launirin^

Food Program and Groceries Intern
Rosie's Place, Boston, MA September 2008- December 2008
•  Completed interns^ through Gordon College's Boston Urban Semester primarily assisting women

with their grocery selections in the food pantry while learning about the services provided dirough
this organization (e.g. legal, housing, and heahh services)

Riferertcss avaiiable upon nqutst



CONTRACTOR NAME

F »T Cov^O?^<^ v>H
Key Personnel —^

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Maureen Beauregard President 153,699 0% -

Meghan Shea VP of Clinical Seryices 85,000 5% 4,250

Ann-Elise Bryant Program Manager 43,000 10% 4,300



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Continuum of Care. FIT/NHNH. Inc.. Dover Permanent Housing. SS-2020-BHS»Q4'Perma-l 1

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641-9441

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927

102-500731

1.7 Completion Dale

October 31, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$104,761

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White

Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature

OZ-OCjUL^

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: Slate of New Hampshire County of Hillsborough

On July 16. 2019 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

.  [Se 1

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
My Commistion Expires Septeinber 5,2()23

Ul.3.2 - Name and Title of Notary or Mistice of the Peace
✓

Ruth Syrek, Admin. Asst., Notary Public

I.l4/^tate Ag^cy SignaiW-c . ,-v L13 Nan^e-and Title of State Agency Signatory

V  1^1^ If) I 1 )U A/i I gZ/i'lj Q\{^ ck^, LKIH
1.16 AoDroval by the N/H.^DeDartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifaoDlicable)1.16 Approval by the N|I^ Jepartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Atja^y General (Fonn, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By: On:

1.18 Approval by^e Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified In block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Slate or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afler the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials

Date Ju'ye. 2019



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensalion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof affer any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post OfTlce addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITT. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the Slate or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

FIT Dover Permaoent Housing Exhibit A Contractor tnitiais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement and participate In the Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all
projects funded by the CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing
Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24
CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing Program that is targeted to serve eight (08)
homeless Individuals in Strafford County with tenant-based, rental assistance and supportive
services, and which includes but is not limited to;

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing: and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used In accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status In accordance with 24,CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to Imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but Is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidenceof domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

FIT Dover Permanent Housing Exhibit A Contractor Initials.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, Including
emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Prooram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-rlsk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F): and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement In 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housino Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.
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2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of ail procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Reouirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected Identifying information of any Individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are othenwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.
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3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. Thfe Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APRk Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NORA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reoorts as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to the following:

5.1.1.1. httPs://vww.hudexchanae.info/Droarams/coc/svstem-Derformance-measures/#quidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR Part 578; Continuum of Care Program; and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0053L1T001808

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. November 1, 2019-October31, 2020, noltoexceed $104,761

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $21,264

1.2.8.2. Operating Cost: $81,042

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2.455

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $104,761

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $26,190

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared In accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Govemmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bvthe State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR. part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Proiect Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an Invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed In Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.,
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinasuDPortslnvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and sen/ices, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial Information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any Items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part. In the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and B, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense Eliqibllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Operatino Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses Include;

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing:

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.'

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. Supportive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs; —)
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals In securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
.independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis Interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxiftcation and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies:

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, eligible
costs for those sen/ices are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; pr

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, In relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasinc funds
onlv: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or sen/ices.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 576.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following: /in
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing Interagency agreements and agreements with
subreclplents and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program Include such assignments as those described
In sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs Incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements. Including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, Insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor Is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organization(s), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable In relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determlned fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
Is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program Income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable In comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay Individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to Itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged In full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management System

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

FIT Dover Permanenl Housing Exhibit B Contractor Initiais
SFYs 2020-2021

SS-2020-6HS-04-PERMA-11 PagelOoflO Data 2019



CiMMtS-l lud|«

FkinU** tn TrandUofl - Oov»r Parmanant Houatoig

CoC FuMb

ActMty Kama
Oparaatig Cam

Sawartx Smbaa

TOTM. PflOORAW COS^
YTO

COKTRACTOR >HARe BHS SHMS

MK Raai*ad Macn

TsrowrmSronssr

ACTOR SHAKE

ActMtv K»m»

8>jppof1>v< STl40f

}}% Raqukad Maieti

T«TU.UUDrilWUBAUME

TOTAL PROORAM 00^ CONTRACTOR SHARE

ActMtv N»w>t

toaratnjCa^^
><gpafPva flarAaaa

»«RaqukadlMA
TflmHuspuMWBAUuee

Tata) wn Maleh I 1»47A1

riT/HHNH, Inc Oawaf Ptnnananc Howalnc

U-2010-AHMI-Aanna-11

Canuactar IMtMli

P^ 1 at I July 16.2019



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

1  •

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on vs^ich the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; ffW^
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility {including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confldentlallty of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided fur^er, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. t\kj^
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completlon of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited Engiish Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
ail such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othenvise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

July 16. 2019
Date

Title:

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name Maureen R^anr^narHMaureen Beauregard
President

Exhibit 0 - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 1g. 2Q19 y ^
Date Name: Maureen Beauregard ^

Title: president

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials]
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction lie entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certiftcation of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

MlExhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initials.
And Other Responsibility Matters
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infotmation of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for othenwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name; FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2019 1/ I YlLUt IL/A /Wilioi,
Date Name:/Maureen Beauregard

Title; President
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will fonward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2019

Date Narfie:'Maureen BeauTegafc
PresidentTitle:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

-lNlv 16 2019

Date

Title: President

fTh/M^JLA
Nam^: Maureen Beauregard '
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desicnated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securltv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busings

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor InitialsJ
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement inUr ia

Page 2 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
1  I

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,

Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fon/trard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall sun/ive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name of the Vender

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

V J| h M r\
Signature of AuthorizedVRepresenlative Signature of Au1of Autepresen|ative Sigi horized Representative

Maureen Beauregard

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

pTIY'/rA'fi P4,l/T President

Title of Au

Date

horized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

July 16. 2019

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2019

Date NarnetMaureen Beauregard

President
Title:

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Initials,
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 825360399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/110713
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,

alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R; Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is enervated and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
- mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud sen/ice or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of, this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will nfiaintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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8. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
blometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information Is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date July 16i 2019



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS informaUon

Security Requirements \,,u. onto
Page 9 of 9 Date JU'Y 10. 2019



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of tlie State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FiT/NHNH. INC is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994. 1 further certify that all fees
and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofBcc is
concerned.

Business ID: 207982

Certificate Number 0004088815

uu

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto sot my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26lb day of April A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. David Cassidv do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of FIT/NHNH. Inc
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on July 16. 2016
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 16 day of July ■ 2019

4.

(Date Contract Signed)

Maureen Beaureaard

(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborouoh

is the duly elected President

(Title of Contract Signatory)

(Signature/6f the Elected Officer)

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 16 day of July .2019

By David Cassidv

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY'SEAL)

Commission Expires:

RUTH A. 8YREK, Notary Public
MyCCRTRnMonBipirMScptairiberS, 2023

otary PubMc/Ji^tice of tithe Peace)

NH OHHS. Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Reiationsfiip Management
Certificate of Vote Wllfiout Seal

July 1,2005



yACORD'
FAMIINT-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DBEAUDOIN

DATE (MM/OOrrVYY)

2/7/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tho certificate holder is ah ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must.have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on

^this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). -
PRODUCER

Davis & Towle Morrill & EveretL Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

wc-^nVe^.): (603) 225-6611 r/uc.Not;(603) 225-7935
im..:

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVFHAGF NAIC «

INSURER A; Philaddlohia Insurance Comoanv 23850

INSURED

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
122 Market St

Manchester, NH 03101

INSURER B ' Sut* HMlth Car* & Human Sarvieaa Salf Insurad Croup

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL
IN9D

SUBR

WVD POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

iMM/nnrYYYYt
POUCY EXP

(MMmnn-YYYi UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GEJJERAL LIABILITY

E [ X 1 OCCUR PHPK1923495 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

] CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED j  1,000,000

MED EXP fAnv ona oaraen>
,  20,000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY
,  1,000,000

GENL AGGREGATE UMIT APPUES PER; GENERALAQGRFGATF
,  3,000,000

poucY Ijy Ijy log
OTHFR-

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG
,  3,000,000

s

A AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

PHPK1923501 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT ,  1,000,000
X ANY AUTO

HEDULED
rros

BODILY INJURY fPer oaraonl s
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

sc
AL BODILY INJURY fParaeddentT $

NC
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPar accideniT s

i

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUB659752 1/1/2019 1/1/2020

FACH OCCURRENCE ,  5,000,000

AGGREGATE

OED X| RETENTIONS 0 ,  5,000,000
B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY ^ ̂ ̂
ANY PRCPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVe fTTl
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory in NH) ' 1
l> y*», deaoiba uiKler
DfSCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

HCHS20190000102 2/1/2019 2/1/2020

1 PER 1 1 OTH-
1 STATUTE 1 1 FR .

E-L EACH ACCIDENT
,  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
,  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
,  1,000,000

A

B

Professional Liab

Worker's Compensatio

PHPK1923495

HCHS20190000102

1/1/2019

2/1/2019

1/1/2020

2/1/2020

See Below

Excess 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORO 101, AddltiotMl Ramarhs Sehadiri*. may ba attaehad H mora apaca 1* raqulrad)
Professional Liability Limits
$1,000,000 each lncldent/$3,000,000 aggregate

Workers Compensation Information
3A State: NH

j

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of NH, DHHS
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Families in Transition
122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101
Tel 603-641-9441

Fax. 603-641-1244

Families
in Transition

:< -.v.

Mission

To provide safe and affordable housing and

comprehensive social services to individuals

and families who are homeless or who are at risk of

becoming homeless, enabling them to gain

self-sufficiency and respect.
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(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

With Independent Auditor's Report



BerryDunri

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FIT/NHNK inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of ftnandal position as of
December 31. 2018 and the related consolidated statements of activities, hjnctional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

•  j

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the,preparation and fair presentation of these.consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting prindples: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated'financial statements that are ft'ee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that vire plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

t

\

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and .disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. .The procedures selected deperxi on the auditor's judgment,
Including the asse^ment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant .to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. Aq audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. ^ .

Opinion ■

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2018, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows fo.r the year th^ ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Bangof, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester. NH • Glastonbury, CT • Charicston.VW • Phoenix, A2
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2 .

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2017 consolidated'financial statements and. in our
report dated March 30, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017 is consistent, in all maten'al respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matter
I

Supplementary Information

Our audit v/as conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31. 2018, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presertted for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individual entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the, consolidated financial statements. The Information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated ftnandal
statements and certain additior>al procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated .financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a vdiole.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2018 the Organization adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14, Presentation of

, Financial S/afemen/s for Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958). Our opinion is not modified with' resp'ert^ff
this matter.

LJ~C^

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 18. 2019



FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31,2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Funds held as Rscal agent
Accounts receivable
Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

investment in related entity
Asset held for sale

Property and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets, net

Total assets

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long^erm debt
Accounts payable
Accmed expenses
Funds held as fiscal agent
Due to related entity
Line of credit

Other current liabilities

Total current liabiliUes -

Long^erm debt, less current portion, net of unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions - controllirig interest
vyithoul donor restrictions • noncontrolling interest

Total without dpnor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2018

$  1.698,033 S

52,211
788,343

80,007
35,613
48.110

2017

1,062,497
96,383

36,380
451,664

33,229

43.097

2,600,317 1,725,250

336,578 292,264
718,154 722,130

1,336,684 -

1,000 1,000
429,779 -

28,530,819 26,210,337
3,605,450 • 2,090,031
198.473 50.000

;  37.757.154 $ 31.091,012

$  1,116,180
249,907
348,095

35,613
145,000

9?.47S

1,977,270

13.604.017

216,147
220,828
217.676
96,383

49.504

800,538

11.264.621

15.581.287 • 12.065.059

17,744,537
3.243.694

20,988.231

1.187.636

22.175.867

14,563,053
3.S6S.478

18,128,531

697.422

t  37.757.154 S 31.091.012

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-



FITmHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolldatftd Statament of ActlvlliM

Year Ended Daeember 31, 2018

(With CompBrative Totals (or the Yaar Ended December 31,2017)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consoiidatsd flnsndsl statements.

• 4-



FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

program Actlvities

Management 2018 2017

Housino Thrift Store Fundralsino and General Total Total ■

aries end t>enerits

Salaries and wages % 3.492,775 S  316,195 S  518.402 S ' 355,442 $ 4.6B2.814 6 3.188.356
Employee benents 400.761 24,951 ■ 54,002 37.770 617,604 349,575

Payioll taxes 262810 24.440 39746 26593 353.589 234.204

Total salaries end

benefits 4.156.366 365,586 612.150 419.605 5,553,907 3.752.145

er expenses

Adverihing 15.018 25,068 . 18.946 69,032 36,236
Application arid permit fees 1.620 . - . 1,620 2.015
Bad debts 26,100 . ■  . - 28,100 26,124

Bank charges 573 8,847 - 11,445 20,865 17.875
Cbflsuttants 19,504 '2,847 4,647 2,483 29,481 78.138
Oepreciation 933,878 11,093 115,347 .51,612 1,111,930 '  1.003.294
Events 3,550 •  2,614 160,685 . 167,049 61.181

General insurance 124.791 3,523 14,318 13.248 155,880 153.904

Grant expense 59,149 . ■ . 69,149 ■

Interest expense 228,999 714 . . 229,713 188.473
Management fees 6.622 - . - 6,622 6.487
Meals and entertainment. 4.740 179 656 547 6,122 5.181
Membership dues 10,790 - 1.741 3,458 15,989 10,022
Merger expenses . • 137,747 137,747 1,000

Office suppfies 282.398 6,460 43.158 38.139 370,165 134.490
Participant expenses 116.915 45 379 379 117,718 99,219
Postage 7.324 9 4.274 1,758 13,366 7,804
Printing 16,755 2.745 19.129 2,088 40,717 24.577
Professbnai fees 53.906 3,500 -  - 112.417 169,823 182.974

Related entity expense (159,398) 159,398 - - . -

Rental subsldtes 332,270 ■ . - 332,270 298.272
Repairs and maiptenertce 370.123 34.325 42,145 16.169 462,762 409,132
Shelter expense 166.891 - - - 166,891 -

StaR development 31.586 96 4,008 3,340 39,034 23.136
Taxes • 313,613 Z307 - . 315,920 326,184
Technology support 190,132 2.231 28,782 23,666 244,811 65,457

Telephone 86.992 5,056 10.095- 8,778 .. 112,921 90.917

Travel 40.914 3,845 5,191 4,222 64,172 44.486

Utifities 512,260 31.481. • 52,007 17.767 613,495 444.062

VISTA program ■ 320.859 - - . 320,859 359.804

Workers' compensation 111.684 14.223 13 229 9.m 148.356 84.544

Total expenses $ 8.390.926 S  666.374 S 1131941' S  897 234 '611.106.475 6 7.939,133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,2018
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

Cash (lows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to nat cash provided by

operating activities
Depredation and amortization
Grants and contributians for caplia) projects
Effect of consolidation of effiliste. net of cash held by consoEldated affiliate

ofS32B,55t

Forgiveness of debt
tjnrealized loss (gain) on investments
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Decrease (increase) in;

Accounts receivable
Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
'Other assets

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other cunenl liabilities

Net cash pro\Med by operating activities -

Cash flows from Investing activities
Repayments ol advances to related parties ^
Net (depos'its to) withdrawals from reserve accounts
Proceeds from sale of investments

.  Investment in development In process
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Acdutsltion of property and equipment

Nat cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from finandng activities
Grants and contributions for capital projects
Net borrowings from line of credit
Proceeds from iong>term borrowings
Payments on long«term debt * *

Net cash provided by fmancing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalenls

Cash and cash equivalants, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure
Acquisition of property and equipment through ior^ierm borrowings from sellar

Property and equipment transferred from development In process

2016 2017

3,149,914 $ 915,494

1.125,127 1.016,491
(S60.790) (1.538,770)

(3.104:400)

(131,267) .  (131.267)
168,848 (1.270)
10,115 (5.133)

42.130 (16,731)
(334,679) (128.248)-
(39.301) 2.609

(119,810) (302)

(21,268) 51.841
64,806 9.744
35.613 .

32.971

338.019

(35.613) 8,208
(40,338) 57,348
275,024 4.264

(1,515,419) (1,931.040)
• 5,133

f2.476.109t (162 6911

f3.792.4S6t (2.018.7781

560.790 1,538,770
145,000 .

3,507,201 772.009
(223.019) (203.1201

3.989.972 2.107.659-

535,536 ' 264.737

1.062.497 • 797.760

I  1.598.033 $ 1.062.497

• S. 60.615

2.222.138

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated finandal statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31,2017)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT or the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit, incorporated on
May 13, 1994, to provide housing and comprehensive social sen/ices to individuals and families who
are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless In certain areas of southern New Harhpshire, including
Manchester, Concord and Dover.

The Organization directiy owns and operates housing programs in fadlitles located on Amherst Street.
Spruce Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additlorial housing
facilities are owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization is the sole
general partner. These limited partnerships Include Bicentennial Families Concord Limited Partnership
(Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech^Street in Manchester. New
Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

In 2008, the Organization created a Community Development Housirtg Organization, Housing Benefits,
Inc. (Housing Benefits). Housing Benefits Identifies and develops new housing units and refurbishes
existing units to meet the persistent need of combating homelessness. Completed housing units are
located on School & Third Street, Lowell Street, Belmont Street, Market Street (Mlllyard I and Millyard
II), Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New Hampshire as well as an additional housing
facilities located on Centra! Avenue In Dover, New Hampshire (Dover), and Lehner Street in Wolfeboro,
New Hampshire (Hope House).

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing Immediate shelter to homeless families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire area. MEH Is the only family shelter in Manchester. New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporation.
At December 31, 2018, Outfitters operated an independent thrift store in Manchester. New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization. During 2018,
management made the decision to close the Concord, New Hampshire thrift store location.

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Bicentennial Families Concord,
Inc. (Bicentennial Families), Second Street Family Mill, Inc. (Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big
Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General Partners), all of which are New Hampshire
corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent the .01% sole general .partners in the Limited
Partnerships, v^ereby Bicentennial Families is a. general partner of Bicentennial, Family MiD Is a
general partner of Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a genera) partner of Family Willows.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition !to End
Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide .entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for
homelessness through research, education and advocacy".
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 .
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017}-

Effective January 1. 2018, FIT and New Horizons for New Hampshire. Inc. (NHNH) merged to create
an integrated system of care that will provide an Increased supply of affordable housing for those most
In need, sustain positive outcomes through the incorporation of evidence based practices proven to
meet Identified needs and goals. Identify areas for systemic and programmatic Improvements through
the use of consistent and accurate data to regularly meaisure success, and provide an integrated
system of care-that will prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly rehouse those who become
homeless, including both the chronically hon>eless and families with children. The merger resulted in a
contribution of net assets of $3,430,951 as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 326,551
Other current assets 63,438
Cash surrender value of life Insurance 33,676
Investments 1,780,456
Propeftyandequipment.net 1,396,197
Accounts payable and accrued payroll (95.950)
Notes payable • (73.4171

Fair value of net assets acquired $ 3.430.951

The merger resulted |n a contribution because the fair value of the Identifiable assets exceeds the fair
value of the liabilities assumed and no consideration was transferred from NHNH.

On May 25. 2018, the Organization organized Wilson Street Condominium Association (the
Association) and Is the majority owner In the Association. The Association-was established for the
purpose of maintaining and preserving a five unit premise located on Wilson Street In Manchester.
New Hampshire.

1, Summary of Sionlflcant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
• Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standarxis Codificalion Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation,
the financial statements of each of the limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated with
the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest is
reported in the consolidated statements of finandal position as noncontroliing interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, the General Partners, Housing Benefits,- MEH, Ou^tters, the Association, and
NHCEH. All significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Families in Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire
Board of Directors

Board of Directors

David Cassidy, Co-Chairperson

Senior Vice President, Eastern Bank

Board member since 2018

Charia BIzios Stevens, Co -Chairperson

Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group

McLane Middleton, Professional Association Esquire >

Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone, Vice Chairperson

Sr. Director Employee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley, Treasurer

President, CPA, CFP, Bartley Financial Advisor

Board member since 2018

Frank Saglio, Asst. Treasurer

Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC.

Board member since 2018

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary

First, Corporate and Foundation Relations

Board member since 2018

Roy Tilsley, At Large

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Scott W. Ellison, At Large

COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner

Board member since 2018 n

Dick Anagnost, Prior Co-Chairperson

President, Anagnost Companies

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration

Board member since 2018

AnnMarie French

Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy Institute

Board member since 2018

Rev. 1/1/2019 RS



Brian Hansen

Team Engineering, Project Manager

Board member since 2018

Brian Mikol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfleld

Vice President, Commercial Lending, People's United Bank

Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage
Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrich

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations

Board member since 2018

Peter Telge

Owner, Stark Brewing Company

Board member since 2018

Roy Ballentine

Executive Chairman, Ballentine Partners, LLC

Board member since 2019

Ryan Mulholtand

V\/estbridge

Board member since 2018

Sarah Jacobs

Manchester School District Coordinator

Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

Captain - Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department
Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormIck, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager
Board member since 2018

Rev. 1/1/2019 RS



Maureen Ann Beauregard

Professional Experience "

November 1991 to Present: Families in Transition, 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH
03101.

1995-Prescnt. President, Families in Transition. Developed a Board of Directors and
established Families in Transition as a private nonprofit agency in 1995. Responsible for
grant writing, fundraising, facility development, oversight of agency persormel, program
development, day to day operations, reporting to stale and federal agencies and public
relations.

•  20031O Present: Development and Implementation of 33 units permanent affordable
housing in Manchester.

• 2001-2003: Development of Families in Transition - Concord, 16 units of affordable
housing with 6 designated for homeless women with a disability and 10 designated
for transitional housing for homeless women and their children.

• 2001 to Present: Development of Families in Transition's social cntrepreneurship,
Family OutFITters thrift store and Employment Training Program.

•  1998 - 2001: Development of Millyard n Transitional Housing Program with 19
apartments and 1 interim unit for 3 families.^

•  1995 - 1997: Development of Millyard I Transitional Housing Program with 12
apartments for homeless women with children.

•  1994 - 1995: Development of steering committee to form the Board of Directors for
Families in Transition and Families in Transition becomes and independent 501 O
(3)

1991-1994 New Hampshire Community Loan Fund. Program Director. Designed and
implemented transitional housing programs for the homeless women with and without
children. 1

•  1993 - i 994: Development and implementation of Community Program providing
supportive services to 14 homeless women and their children and assisting them in
attaining and maintaining housing.

•  1992- 1993: Development and implementation of Amherst Street Transitional
Housing Program for 9 homeless single women.

•  1991 - 1992: Development and implementation of Spruce Street Transitional
Housing Program for 5 homeless women and their children.

November 1989-March 1991: Child Protective Service Worker n for the Division for Children

and Youth Services, 30 Maplewood Avenue, Portsmouth, NH. Advocated for abused and
neglected children in court, established support network (fostercare, visitation, and
counseling) to help in the abuse/neglect recovery process.

November 1988-November 1989: Substance Abuse Counselor for Team Coordinating
Agency, Phoenix East, Haverhill, MA. Counseled clients, aided and found resources
(AA/NA meetings, employment, education, and counseling) for residents in halfway
house for alcoholic/addicts, age 16-25. Conducted weekly support group.



Education

Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New Hampshire, College of Life
Science and Agriculture. Area of study: Family Studies.

Professional AffiUations and Honors

1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Housing Investment Fund. Member of Board of
Directors.

1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Equity Fund. Member Board of Directors and
Investment Committee

2004: New Hampshire Business Review, Business Excellence Awards 2004, Maureen
Beaurcgard for Excellence in Non-Profit
2004: The Walter J. Dunfey Awards for Excellence in Management awarded to Families in
Transition

2003: YWCA Susan B. Anthony Award, Woman of the Year
2003: New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority Annual Conference: Maureen Beauregard
and Families in Transition recognized as Best Practice for Development of Affordable
Housing in New Hampshire.
2002: Great Bay Foundation: $150,000 grant award for the development and implementation
of social entrepreneurship, Family OutFITtcrs.
2002: Citizens Bank and WMUR Channel - 9, 2003 Community Champions Award for ,
Homclessncss for New Hampshire
2001: Manchester Continuum of Care Narrative submission to the U.S. Dept. of Housing &
Urban Development, SuperNOFA: 1 of lop 10 narratives in the country.
2003 to Present: YMCA Diversity Committee
2003 to Present: Intown Manchester, Economic Development Committee, Trustee
2003: The Sharing Foundation, Caring for Cambodia's Children Parent Advisory Council
2003 to Present: New Hampshire Interagcncy Council on Homclessncss, member appointed
by Governor Benson
2002 to Present: Policy Academy for the Chronically Homeless, member
2002 to Present: Great Bay Foundation, Work Group consisting of 5 leading initiatives,
member

2001 to Present: Manchester Task Force on Housing, member appointed by Mayor
1999 to Present: Northern New England Housing Investment Fund, Investment Committee,
Trustee

1998 to Present: Manchester Continuum of Care, Chairperson in 1998, 2003, founding
member



Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLADC

OBJECTIVE

Coacinue to utilize and e?q>and the clinical and management skills have I arcaioed from my
professional and academic training to secure a position in a nonprofit setting.

EDUCATION / LI CENSURE
Master - Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor ■ September 2010- Present

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker October 22, 2012-Pre8ent

• Master of Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2010
■  Graduated with an MSW from the Advanced Standing Program

'■ Bachelor of Art, Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2006 .
■  Graduated with an BSW with GPA of 3.41

EMPLOYMENT

Vice President, Clinical & Supportive Services
Families in Traosidon-Ncw Horizons December 20*^, 2017 - present

■  Recciveiship-Imerim Executive Direaor of Serenity Place
•  Oversea all clinical and supportive services at Families in Transition-New Horizons includii^

emetgency shehcr, transitional and permanent supportive housing, Intensive Outpatient Services,
Ourpaneni services, RecoveryHbusing and programming. ^ '

'  • Qualityofcontrolof heakhcarefacilrtieslicensurc. '
• Overei^t of fidelity of.evidence based practices and modck.
• Overeat of staff competencies and required trainings for best practices across the agency.
•  Supervision of agcncyprogiam managers and housing direaor.
•  Provide clinical supervisor for licensure and certifications.
• Qualrry control of all billing policies and procedures.

Clinical Director
Families in Transition Sept 1", 2016- December 2017

•  Oversee and manage Sr. Housing Program Manager v4io supervises the supportive services department with up
CO 25 staff providmg bousing (emergency, cransitional and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to
serve 200 homeless individual and families. Supportive services erKompass individual case mana^ment,
therapy, psytbo-educauonal worfahops, pro-social family activities and crisis intervention.

•  Oversee the Family Willows Program Manager who supervises 11 clinical staff who conduct co-occurring
treatment to women only

•  Develop and staff Recovery Ffousing program and implementation of newest housing and supportive service
programming

•  Develop and oversight Open Doors outpatieot programming for all cransitional housing programs of FIT
■  Ensure quality programming across Farniiies in Transitions clinical department
•  Provide training within the organization and community on substance misuse in NH.
•  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition's various Supportive Service
•  Oversi^t of billing componeocs of ^ levels of G>occurring treatment.

Therapist January 2014- Present
Bedford FanoUy Therapy

•  Treat a caseload of 15 clients in a private outpatient group practice



■  Utilize various evidence based practices CBTJDBT, and Seeking Safety skills to help clients meet their own
individua] goals

•  Condua Drug and Alcohol assessments
•  Active participant in DWI Offender Program providing mandated outpatient session for individuals • corr^

from the Impaired Drivers Program
•  Participate in weekly supervision with other licensed clinictans part of the private group pracdcc.

Clinical 8c Supportive Service Manager March 7*'', 2016- August 31",2016
Families In Transition

•  Manage the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
•  Manage the day to day operations for the Housir^ program of Families in Transition consisting of over 200

apartment units in New Fbmpshire.
•  Provide clinical and administrative supervision for a total of 14 staff for Famibes In Transition
•  Ensure compliance with budgetary and finarKial goals.

■  Maintain compliance with Succ, Federal, Accreditation, Contract and Insurance regulations.
•  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition's various Qimcal Programs.

Program Maoager of the Family Willow Substance Use Treatment Program September 2014-2016
Families Id Traositioo

■  Mana^ the day to day Operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
■  Transitioned the program from grant funded to billii^ all commercial insurances
■  Increased accessibility of treatment from 86 clients in 2013 to 250 in 2016.
•  Provided clinical and administrative oversight of the FW Substance Lfcc Treatment Program
•  Carried a caseload of 12-15 individual clients providing co-occurring evidence base therapeutic interventions.
•  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient treatment in a group setting on a weekly basis to group of 12 womea

■  Provided training and educatbn to staff on clinical intervention and best practices in the group setting.
Therapist May 2010- September 2014
Families lo TraQsitioo

•  Facilitated Intensive Outpaticm Programing in a group sctung daily for up to 12 clients
•  Carried a caseload of up to 15 people for individual therapy.
•  Provided crisis services for the hotline of Families In Transition
■  Conducted Substance Use Disorder Assessments for incoming clients
•  Produced treatment plans, progress notes and supporting documentation in a timely rrianner
•  Helped implement new curriculum changes in the treatment programming

MSW Intern' May 2009 to May 2010
Bedfo^ Cbunselihg — Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester
'  • Conducted intake interviews for new, adult clients and devcbp comprehensive psycho-social assessments to

include diagnosis and substance use assessments
•  Provided ps)chochcrapeutk intervention services to twcnty-cwo indivKluals using brief treatment and cogrutivc

behavioral interventions

•  Anended therapeutic workshops pertaining to dual-diagnosis, behavioral health and client driven treatment
planning

Case Manager June 2006-May 2010
Families In Transition

•  Provided in hon* case management services to 30 individuals and families, to enhance housing stability among
the homeless population.

■  Provided crisis hotline coverage for all clinical programming of Families In Transition
•  Conducted program interviews for the community support program
•  Maintained all files with updated documentation, dear and concise progress notes aiKl treamiem plans
■  Facilitated workshops to help enhance overall wellness to parocipants of the program
•  Collaborated with community paitncrs to increase referral resources

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
Providers Association Board of Directors-Vice President of Treaunent July 2014 to Present
NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Associatioo January 2012 to Present
Member of the Manchester Substance Use Collaborative March 2012 to Present

PRFSFNTTATIONS

NH Associatioo for infant mental health workshop Helping Parents Be Parents:
Addressing Substance Use and Trauma in a Family S)«tcnv Loon Mountain June 2015



Providers Association: Addressing Substance Misuse in the Home Environment March 31«i016 at
Wenrworth Douglas liDspital in Dover, NH

REFERENCES - AVAJLABLE UPON REQUEST



Ann-Elise Bryant

Objective
Seeking a position as Case Manager

Education

Gordon College Wcnham,MA
Bachelor of Aro in Psychology and Sociology CPA 3.57 May 2010
Honors: Banin^ton Scholar, for academicperfomanct in, and impact on, the P^cholo^ department and campus- one student

Jhm each department chosen; Dean's List;graduated cum laude

Experience
Housing Advocate
Families In Transition, Manchester, NH Oaober 2015- Present
•  Responsible for an active case load of 33 individuals who were formerly homeless and are now

striving to increase self-sufficiency throu^ addressing barriers such as substance use disorders,
mental health diagnoses, and trauma related symptoms while moving cowards permanent, stable,
independent housing

•  Promote participants' growth in achieving goals related to the above mentioned barriers, in addition
to those related to increasing financial, employment, and/or education related successes, throi^
providing support in home and community, a^ocacy, and inter-agency and community refcrri

•  Encourage appropriate community building through facilitating moruhly dinners and other social
events

, , • Documera timely records of all participant and collaborative meetings and maintain necessary file
documentation such as up-to-date Action Plans, Case Management Needs Identifiers, and Releases
of Information

Supportive Services Case Manager
Somerville Homeless Coalition, Somerville, MA , March 2014- Oaober 2015
• Manned an active case bad of 12-18 individuals who were formeriy homeless and in recovery from

substance abuse addiction and/or mental health diagnoses
•  Provided services in home and community as outlined on an Individual Service Plan (ISP) in

conjunction with suppoits to promote retention of permanent housing, sobriety, and symptom
management

•  Responded to crisis situations (including relapse) and utilized Harm Reduction tactics to promote
client safety

•  Produced documentation of all client interactions and maintained up-to-date ISPs and assessments

Supported Employment Specialist
Genesis Behavioral Heakh, Laconia, NH Januaiy 2013- February2014
•  Supported an active case bad of 25-30 individuals with Severe and Persistent Mental Illness (SPMI)
.  pnmanly with employment search and school related activities in the community us ir^ an

Individualized Service Plan (ISP) to provide optimal treatment within a team approach
•  E>ocumentcd all interactions with clients to maintain continuity of care within and, if necessary,

outside of agency
•  Provided emergency services such as Crisis Intervention, support to local hospital eiargcncy rooms,

and/or comaa of local authorities when necessary



•  Facilicaied more effective, streamlined processes for working in conjunction with local agencies, as
v,«ll as wthin the Supported Employment team in the areas of service provision to clients and new
hiretraining

Research Data Coordinator

Institute for Communtry Inclusion, Boston, MA November 2010-December 2011
•  ConduCTcd rKcarch related activities (e.g. interviews, transcribing, literature reviews) on two projects

focused on aiding individuals with disabilities
• Worked as a member of a research team and attended, and sometimes led, team meetings

Teaching Assistant
Gordon College, Wenham, MA August 2008- March 2010
•  Lead so^ group meetings ̂ tog from six to twelve students and was responsible for grading

students' papers and providing extra help, advice, and instruction
•  Ancnded preparation and follow-up meetings

Private Babysitter
North Shore of Boston, MA December 2007- May 2010
•  Provided c^ for children ages 3 months- 10 )ears old through such activities as creating prodixxive

playtime, aiding with homework help, and meeting basic needs (mcaklmc, bathing, laundering

Food Program and Groceries Intern
Rosic's Place, Boston, MA September 2008- December 2008
•  Completed internship throu^ Gordon GDllege's Boston Urban Semester primarily assisting women

wi^ their groary selcoions in the food pantry while learning about the services provided through
this oi^ganization (e.g. legal, housing, and hcahh services)

R/fennces available upon nquul



CONTRACTOR NAME

PXT
Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Maureen Beauregard President 153,699 0% -

Meghan Shea VP of Clinical Services 85,000 4% 3,400

Ann-Elise Bryant Program Manager 43,000 15% 6,450


